
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Wednesday, 2 June 2021 
1.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Online via Microsoft Teams 
 
 



 

 

 
Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 
2 June 2021 

 

There will be a meeting of the Culture, Tourism & Sport Board at 1.00 pm on Wednesday, 2 June 
2021 Online via Microsoft Teams. 
 

Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place in advance of the meeting. Please contact your political group as 
outlined below for further details. 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3263     email:     Peter.Robbins@local.gov.uk 
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

LGA Contact:  
Emma West 
emma.west@local.gov.uk / 
 

Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of £9.00 per hour or £10.55  
if receiving London living wage is available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly 
people or people with disabilities) incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:Peter.Robbins@local.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board – Membership 2020/2021 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 7)  
Cllr Peter Golds (Deputy Chair) Tower Hamlets Council 

Cllr Derek Bastiman Scarborough Borough Council 
Cllr Matthew Lee South Kesteven District Council 

Cllr Cath Homer Northumberland Council 
Cllr Barry Lewis Derbyshire County Council 

Cllr Phil Seeva Cornwall Council 
Cllr Nick Worth South Holland District Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr David Jeffels North Yorkshire County Council 
Cllr Colin Morgan Daventry District Council 

Cllr Karen Rampton Bournemouth, Christchurch and Poole Council 
  
Labour ( 7)  
Cllr Clare Coghill (Deputy Chair) Waltham Forest London Borough Council 

Cllr Peter Kelly Preston City Council 
Cllr Brigid Jones Birmingham City Council 

Cllr Richard Henry Stevenage Borough Council 
Cllr Muhammed Butt Brent Council 

Cllr Dhanisha Patel Bridgend County Borough Council 
Vacancy Labour Group 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Guy Nicholson Hackney London Borough Council 
Cllr Danny Myers City of York Council 

Cllr Jacqueline Burnett Luton Borough Council 
  
Liberal Democrat ( 2)  
Cllr Gerald Vernon-Jackson 
(Chair) 

Portsmouth City Council 

Cllr Chris White Hertfordshire County Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Chris Hogg South Lakeland District Council 
  
Independent ( 2)  
Cllr Tom Hollis Ashfield District Council 

Cllr Julian German (Vice-Chair) Cornwall Council 
  
Substitutes  

Cllr Natalie McVey Malvern Hills District Council 



 

 

 
 

Agenda 
 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 
 
Wednesday 2 June 2021 
1.00 pm 
Online via Microsoft Teams 
 

 
 

 Item Page Time 
 

1.   Chair's Welcome, Apologies and Substitutes and 
Declarations of Interest 
 

  

2.   Minutes of the last meetings (includes extraordinary 
meeting) 
 

1 - 18  

3.   Theatres Trust (presentation) 
 

  

4.   Arts Council England's (ACE) Delivery Plans 
 

19 - 26  

5.   Update on work to support sport and physical 
activity services 
 

27 - 34  

6.   Parkrun and Mass Events 
 

35 - 40  

7.   End of year report and summer workplan 
 

41 - 48  

8.   Outside Bodies 
 

49 - 52  

9.   Any other business 
 

  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Wednesday, 22 September 2021, 1.00 pm, Venue 

TBC 
 



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 2





Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 2





 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Arts Council England’s Delivery Plans 

 

Purpose of report 

For information. 

 

Summary 

This report highlights the key aspects of Arts Council England (ACE)’s new delivery plan, 

which sets out how ACE will deliver the objectives of their ten-year strategy ‘Let’s Create’, 

published in early 2020, prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. The delivery plan contains much 

of interest to the LGA, including a strong commitment to jointly delivering our partnership 

work on the improvement programme and a focus on place-based working. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Lauren Lucas 

Position:   Adviser – Culture, Tourism and Sport 

Phone no:   07920 278485 

Email:    lauren.lucas@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

Recommendation/s 

That Members note ACE’s new delivery plan. 

Action/s 

Members to provide any feedback on the delivery plan for inclusion in our conversations 

with ACE. 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Arts Council England’s Delivery Plans 

Background 

1. In January 2020, ACE published their ten-year strategy ‘Let’s Create’. It’s vision is that 

“by 2030, we want England to be a country in which the creativity of each of us is valued 

and given the chance to flourish, and where every one of us has access to a remarkable 

range of high-quality cultural experiences”. 

 

2. The publication of their delivery plan which outlines how ACE will deliver this vision was 

delayed as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, but the first of two stages of the plan has 

now been released. This first phase outlines the context for the plan, the themes that 

ACE will be focusing on, how their existing funding programmes will resource their plans 

and their Equalities objectives. The second part of the plan is due to be published in the 

summer 2021. The plan will be supported by five Area Plans, which will be published by 

July 2021. 

 

3. The reserves that ACE had allocated to help kickstart the delivery of Let’s Create were 

expended on the Emergency Response Funds in the summer of 2020, so for the first 

year of this plan, they have limited investment available to support new initiatives. ACE  

will therefore refresh the criteria for existing major investment programmes (including the 

National Portfolio, Creative People and Places, National Lottery Project Grants, and 

Developing Your Creative Practice) so that they can better support the delivery of the 

three Outcomes – Creative People, Cultural Communities and A Creative & Cultural 

Country – set out in Let’s Create. 

 

4. The delivery plan sets out five new themes (see below in points 5.1-5.5). The themes 

single out supporting children and young people and supporting freelance practitioners 

(ensuring these careers are open to everyone, regardless of background) as key 

priorities.  

 

Delivery Plan Priorities 

5. As referenced above, the delivery plan focuses on five key themes: 
  

5.1. Fit for the future, 

5.2. Supporting individuals,  

5.3. Strengthening our place-based working and levelling up,  

5.4. Working internationally; and  

5.5. How the Arts Council will change. 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Fit for the Future 

 

6. This priority focuses on arts and cultural organisations innovating and developing new 

business models, for example working with health and social care providers or higher 

education. Organisations will be supported to be entrepreneurial to deliver benefits to the 

community. There will be an increased focus on efficiency, including consideration of 

mergers, shared services, and new partnerships. There are references to supporting 

organisations to be world-leading in the way that they develop their environmental 

sustainability and reduce their carbon footprint. 

 

7. ACE’s four ‘investment’ principles’ in Let’s Create will be used to establish what a ‘well-

run’ organisation looks like, these principles are as follows: 

 

7.1 Ambition & Quality, 

7.2 Inclusivity & Relevance, 

7.3 Environmental Responsibility; and 

7.4 Dynamic. 

 

8. The delivery plan notes that “Local authority-run services – such as libraries and 

museums – will need to apply the four Principles in a different way from standalone 

cultural businesses”. 

 

Links with our work/comments: 

 

9. Whilst our improvement work already supports this principle, we will need to ensure that 

each of the principles are effectively incorporated in our programme. 

 

10. Our social prescribing publication will provide case study examples illustrating ACE’s 

principles. 

 

11. The LGA ‘Productivity Expert’ programme promotes entrepreneurial working and 

different delivery models (see Tullie House Museum case study). 

 

12. The general track record of councils in delivering mergers, shared services and 

partnerships could be of value in supporting this theme. 

 

Supporting Individuals 

13. The Delivery Plan acknowledges that the ‘trickle down’ from organisations to individual 

practitioners has not always worked well in the past and that freelancers have been 

particularly affected by the pandemic. The plan states “the Arts Council will need to 

provide more direct support to individual creative practitioners”. This will include a 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

combination of improved financial support alongside improved access to training and 

development opportunities.  

 

14. Priority will be given to those at an early stage in their career, particularly Black, Asian, 

ethnically diverse and disabled creative practitioners, as well as those from lower socio-

economic backgrounds. 

 

Links to our work/comments 

15. This principle links to our own EDI work as a Board, and officers will explore 

opportunities to share insights, identify sources of data and good speakers for events. 

 

16. It may be worth exploring the possible inclusion of early stage council cultural officers in 

this support offer. 

 

Strengthening our place-based work and levelling up 

17. In referring to a ‘place-based approach’, ACE refers to “the way in which the Arts 

Council, as the national development agency for creativity and culture, works differently 

in different geographic areas in order to most effectively realise the ambitions of Let’s 

Create”. 

 

18. The plan explains ACE’s role in this field of work: “The Arts Council, as a national 

development agency, is able to intervene strategically at scale alongside local partners, 

to make the most of opportunities and overcome challenges. Using local connections 

and influence, the Arts Council can bring to the table people and organisations who 

might not otherwise have engaged with one another”. 

 

19. A commitment is made to working with DCMS and MHCLG “to ensure that culture plays 

a central role in development initiatives such as the Cultural Investment Fund, the 

Stronger Towns Fund, and the Future High Streets Funds”. 

 

20. The plan also commits to working with Mayoral combined authorities, LEPs and local 

authorities and notes that “in order to do this effectively, we will agree a new set of 

shared principles for collaboration with the Local Government Association and continue 

to bring together all parties interested in developing culture in place”. 

 

21. Particular commitment is given to places where engagement is currently low. Libraries 

and museums are specifically seen as central to delivering better engagement in those 

areas. 

 

22. Children and young people remain a priority and ACE will be implementing the 

recommendations of the Durham Commission on Creativity and Education. 

 

23. With this in mind, ACE will be taking a three-pronged approach as set out below: 

Page 22

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.dur.ac.uk/creativitycommission/


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

23.1. Investing in a universal offer, including BookStart packs and Music Education 

Hubs. The LGA improvement programme is also specifically referenced in relation 

to this section. 

23.2. Where engagement is already high, investment will be tied to improved 

collaborative working with education, healthcare, criminal justice, voluntary and 

commercial sectors. The plan states ”We will support this work through new, ring-

fenced Place Partnership Funds within NLPG” (National Lottery Project Grants)”. 

23.3. By July 2021, ACE will publish a list of priority places where engagement and 

current investment is too low. This will consider previous investment levels, 

engagement with culture and “an understanding of local ambition and capacity”. 

Links to our work/comments 

24. This is the part of the Delivery Plan with the most direct relevance to LGA’s work. 

 

25. It provides a positive foundation for our already strong working relationship with the ACE. 

The LGA is specifically referenced as a key stakeholder along with DCMS and MHCLG. 

 

26. The LGA’s key role in supporting wider engagement with local government (including 

CAs and LEPs) is acknowledged. 

 

27. The LGA’s improvement work is referenced as part of their universal offer.  

 

28. Libraries and museums are noted as an important delivery mechanism for this objective.  

 

29. This objective is very much in keeping with our general direction as outlined in ‘Cultural 

Strategy in a Box’. 

 

30. We will need to work with the ACE to identify any possible risks inherent in using ‘local 

ambition and capacity’ as a metric for prioritisation and how we can work together to 

support areas where capacity is currently low. 

 

Working Internationally 

 

31. The plan acknowledges the impact of EU Exit and COVID-19 on the cultural sector. 

 

32. The role of ACE is seen as supporting cultural organisations to navigate the new 

environment and the plan states:  “We will do this by working more closely with the other 

UK arts councils, and various sector groups and representative bodies, to commission 

and disseminate appropriate legal and practical advice, to build the Arts Info point in 

Wales into a reliable and trusted ‘one stop’ source for information, and to provide 

additional investment to try to minimise disruption to touring”. 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

33. Other examples in this section include working with DCMS on the new Indemnity 

Scheme for international loans, export licensing, exchange programmes and working 

with international federations. 

 

Links to our work/comments 

34. There are connections with the LGA’s advocacy in relation to post EU Exit 

arrangements. 

 

35. The plan states that the ACE will “look for opportunities” to showcase culture on an 

international stage, which may link to the LGA’s major events. 

 

How the Arts Council will change 

36. This section outlines what the ACE will need to look like as an organisation to deliver 

against their new objectives. 

 

37. The ACE will need to be inclusive, relevant, dynamic, accessible, customer-focused, 

agile, and responsive and ensure flexible working for staff. There will be a new data 

strategy with a commitment to open-data and evidence-based working. 

 

38. The ACE commits to ensuring that their organisational values – we care, we learn, and 

we are ambitious – are embedded in all their work. 

 

Our Investment 

39. This section of the plan outlines how the ACE will encourage a joint endeavour across 

the whole cultural sector to adopt and embed their four Investment Principles, while 

acknowledging that the principles apply differently in different sectors. 

 

40. It is recognised that there will need to be specific targeted initiatives to continue to 

integrate museums, cultural property, and libraries into the Arts Council. 

 

41. In relation to museums, there is a commitment to better support museums beyond the 

current National Portfolio. This includes opening up National Lottery Portfolio Grants to 

non-accredited museums and a focus on MEND and exhibition tax relief. 

 

42. In relation to libraries, the plan is focused on “ensuring that public libraries play a central 

role in our place-making work, supporting levelling up and community building, 

developing employability and helping to deliver health, wellbeing and loneliness 

strategies and helping to close the digital divide”. LEAF, the Single Digital Presence, and 

library accreditation are referred to. The English Public Libraries (EPL) group of which 

LGA is a member is also mentioned as the ‘key strategic planning forum for libraries’. 

Page 24

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

Implications for inclusion, diversity and equality 

43. The Delivery Plan also includes a separate section on Equality Objectives. These are: 

 

43.1 We will ensure a more equitable distribution of our investment to improve 

opportunities for everyone, especially those with under-represented, protected 

characteristics and from disadvantaged socio-economic groups. 

43.2 We will invest in inclusive cultural organisations whose leadership, governance, 

and workforce – and the independent creative practitioners they support – 

represent the diversity of contemporary England. 

43.3 We will invest in a cultural sector that is more relevant to all of England’s 

communities, especially those that have been historically underserved by public 

investment in culture. 

43.4 We will become a more inclusive and relevant national development agency for 

creativity and culture that models good practice. 

 

44. These objectives should be considered in our own emerging work in this area. 

Implications for Wales 

45. The Delivery Plan only applies to England. 

Financial Implications 

46. None. 

Next steps 

47. Officers to reflect Members views as this work continues to progress. 

 

 

Page 25

Agenda Item 4

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk




 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

 

Update on work to support sport and physical activity services 

 

Purpose of report 

For discussion. 

Summary 

This paper outlines: 

 the interim findings for the ‘Future of public sport and leisure’ research 

 the emergency insourcing guide 

 work on the Moving Communities Platform 

 engagement with the new National Sector Group for Sport and Physical Activity 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Ian Leete 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   0207 664 3143  

Email:    ian.leete@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

Recommendations: 

That the Board note the report and provide comments on the draft findings, including 

providing a steer on the ‘Future of public sport and leisure’ recommendations (paragraph 

9). 

Action: 

Officers to incorporate comments 

 

Page 27

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

The Future of Public Sport and Leisure research 

Background 

1. The future landscape for leisure provision is exceedingly challenging from a financial 

perspective. This has led to significant discussion and scrutiny at senior levels of 

councils, including Chief Executives and leaders. As a result, councils have reflected on 

the reason for providing leisure services, and determined the benefits that accrue to their 

communities from doing so.  

 

2. While this reaffirmation of local government’s commitment to leisure delivery is positive, 

some additional thought leadership is required to help councils understand how delivery 

in the future may look different from delivery pre-pandemic, both as a result of changing 

customer expectations and behaviours, and from a more financially challenging 

environment.  

 

3. This research commission was launched at our Reimagining the future of public leisure 

conference on 21 January 2021 and aims to provide some of this thought leadership.  

 

4. Working with CLOA and APSE, we have provided a grant to provide a rounded 

assessment of the current challenges facing local authorities because of the COVID-19 

pandemic and assess how this may fundamentally affect the future shape of sport and 

leisure services.  

 

5. The research piece and subsequent report will provide essential intelligence that can 

help inform and positively influence the future direction of sport and leisure services as 

part of the wider physical activity system and its’ contribution to placemaking.   

 

6. Survey responses were received from over 250 councils and providers, and the results 

informed a series of roundtable discussions with key stakeholders from Swim England, 

Active Partnerships, Sport England, District Councils Network, Leisure Providers and 

included representatives from the CTS Board. The only group we have found it difficult to 

engage with formally are Directors of Public Health (DsPH) given the current situation 

but we plan to take informal soundings from DsPH and would welcome any 

recommendations from the Board.  

 

7. The headline findings presented here are grouped together around common themes and 

issues that came through from the research. They provide an assessment of the current 

challenges and positioning of the sector going forward and are designed to be 

progressive to help move the sector forwards: 

7.1 Councils play a central leadership role in driving up levels of physical activity 

7.2 Public sport and leisure services can (and want to) play a crucial role in supporting 

COVID recovery 

Page 28

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/reimagining-future-public-leisure-services-thursday-21-january-2021
https://www.local.gov.uk/reimagining-future-public-leisure-services-thursday-21-january-2021


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

7.3 A significant number of public sport and leisure services are under immediate risk of 

operational failure and face critical long-term damage without support 

7.4 Public sport and leisure services are unique, providing lifelong opportunities to be 

active, filling a market gap that the private sector is unable to provide 

7.5 Community sport and physical activity development is essential in expanding the 

reach of services and helping to address health inequalities 

7.6 Partnerships and genuine collaboration are essential in the delivery of progressive 

and integrated services and therefore should be the central consideration in procuring 

services 

7.7 Public sport and leisure services generate social value. There needs to be a powerful 

voice for public sport and leisure 

7.8 Active communities are good for the environment, both through the provision of 

green spaces and active travel approaches, and work on climate change will need to 

acknowledge their contribution, as well as the sector taking action to mitigate its own 

emissions. 

 

8. These are supported by the following draft recommendations:  

8.1. Better strategic alignment will deliver better community and population health 

outcomes. Public sport and leisure services can have a powerful role in helping 

people and places recover from COVID and must therefore work to better connect to 

their stakeholders locally. Strong collaborative leadership coupled with an appetite 

for change will yield even better place-based outcomes and at scale. At a national 

level early conversations with Government and the new Office for Health Promotion 

will be needed in order to ensure these services are in their thinking and plans. 

8.2. Short term support is needed. Planning for the long term is essential, considering 

the strategic significance and role of these services moving forward. However, the 

sector will need support as it moves out of lockdowns and central government is 

urged to recognise the potentially perilous state of the sector and what might be lost 

or potentially damaged for the long term. The cost implications of parts of the sector 

failing is concerning, underlining the need for a fuller understanding of the role of the 

sector in supporting health and sporting outcomes especially. Now that local 

elections have concluded there is a need for stakeholders to come together and 

provide a detailed assessment of the current position of the sector. 

8.3. Create a platform for progressive engagement and debate. There needs to be a 

positive and constructive conversation about the role of the sector. In some places it 

has started locally, but not at scale nationally. A strong collective voice for public 

sport and leisure is needed, most probably as a consortium of stakeholders. There is 

a need to engage with government to discuss further how the sector can support 

recovery and provide value for money services and high yielding social value 

outcomes. It could also provide an environment within which to co-produce a 

national strategic plan and possibly reframe or refocus services to further reflect 

their unique role and purpose. This plan could sit across the 300 plus individual 

councils recognising their role as custodians of vital community assets and services 

Page 29

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

but also providing the impetus and power to accelerate change and bring together 

local and national stakeholders for everyone’s benefit. 

8.4. Seek £1 billion 10-year capital investment to meet climate change targets. A 

proposal for central and local government to work together to co-produce a game 

changing programme of investment in the replacement or upgrade of older, carbon 

consuming public sport and leisure buildings. This would be part of an overall 

change programme, supporting COVID recovery (health, jobs, local economy, 

protecting essential community assets) and to deliver a significant contribution to 

climate change targets.  

8.5. Develop a single voice and engagement plan across sector stakeholders – the 

National Sector Group, discussed later, is an early attempt to bring together key 

partners. This is in addition to sub-sets of the sector meeting, such as the Local 

Government Physical Activity Partnership, which brings together APSE, CLOA, the 

LGA, UK Active, CLUK and Sport England.  

8.6. Develop the evidence base on social value and impact, making greater use of 

the Moving Communities platform.  

 

9. Members are invited to provide comments on whether the headline findings resonate 

with their council’s views, and if the recommendations are suitably ambitious, while also 

being realistic.  

 

10. The Future of public leisure report is currently being drafted and is due for completion in 

June, and a parliamentary launch event is being developed for mid-July.  

 

Emergency insourcing guide 

11. This guide follows on from the guidance note ‘Options for councils in supporting leisure 

providers through COVID-19’ (April 2020), produced by the local government association 

(LGA) in partnership with Community Leisure UK (CLUK) and UKactive. This set out the 

impact of COVID-19 on leisure providers and the options available to councils to support 

their leisure operator through the crisis. It is being developed in response to ongoing 

concerns about the financial stability of providers, and aims to protect assets and 

services for the community in a worst case scenario of provider failure.  

 

12. This guide is not intended to instruct or encourage councils to bring leisure services back 

in-house. It has been written to help councils in an emergency position mobilise their 

leisure service. It provides appropriate tools and considerations to support the internal 

resource that should be committed to the process. This will assist the continuity of 

service for the community and ease the transfer from the existing provider to the council, 

either as an interim measure or on a longer-term basis.   

 

13. Wherever feasible to do so, councils are encouraged to work with and retain the 

incumbent service provider, either through an open book approach, cost plus 

Page 30

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/options-councils-supporting-leisure-providers-through-covid-19
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/options-councils-supporting-leisure-providers-through-covid-19


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

arrangements. While financially supporting them through this crisis period, councils may 

be able to recoup the additional costs over the remainder of the contractual term. While 

the industry has been severely impacted by the pandemic, there continues to be signs of 

recovery that will positively impact on a leisure service over the longer term, if the 

operator is able to sustain its business until then. 

 

14. This guide aims to highlight the key considerations for the emergency termination of 

leisure management contracts. However, given the complexities of each contract and 

individual circumstances of a particular council that will determine an insourcing 

arrangement, the guide should be considered as an information source rather than a 

comprehensive plan of action.  

 

15. The LGA encourages councils to consider (as part of the process) the longer-term 

objectives of the transfer, be it to retain the service in-house as an interim measure until 

the industry has recovered, or for a longer-term. Sport England provides support 

materials for defining strategic outcomes. This approach will ensure that decisions are 

made appropriate to the outcomes and ensure the strategic objectives of the service 

continue to be met, with the insourcing process forming part of the council’s longer-term 

journey and vision. 

 

16. The guide has been developed with the support of councils, and with comments from key 

partners such as CLUK, UK Active and Sport England. It includes a small number of 

illustrative case studies. The guide will have a soft launch on the LGA website w/c 7 

June 2021, and be promoted through LGA bulletins and our training events with Sport 

England.  

Moving Communities platform 

17. The Moving Communities platform has been established as the monitoring and 

evaluation tool for the National Leisure Recovery Fund, but offers councils a significant 

improvement in data collection and analytical capacity. In particular, it calculates a social 

value and impact based on national research, and applied to the number of visits to local 

facilities. 

  

18. LGA officers have been working closely with Sport England to shape and effectively 

communicate the value of the tool, and to strengthen its abilities. For instance, the tool 

now uses a data feed from the LGA’s LG Inform tool, allowing councils to compare their 

results with a comparable council, rather than immediate neighbours.  

 

19. Councils should have received their first reports from www.movingcommunities.org, the 

monitoring and evaluation platform for the National Leisure Recovery Fund. This 

provides councils with a clear understanding of who is returning to leisure centres 

first, what the return means to those users, and calculates the social value of the visit. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
http://direct.sportengland.org/funding/strategic-facilities/strategic-outcomes-planning-guidance/
https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/709lCP1JWI033rzT1WXt6K


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

National reports are also being pulled together and shared on Twitter 

@movingcommunit1 and LinkedIn @MovingCommunities.  

 

20. These aggregated reports represent a step change in the information available to help us 

make the case for further financial investment to Government, and are being shared with 

DCMS and MHCLG. The platform is free to use and automatically imports data 

from your leisure management software.  

National Sector Group for Sport and Physical Activity 

21. The LGA has joined a group of partners, led by the Sport and Recreation Alliance, to 

develop a core offer from the sector to Government, and to develop a compact with 

Government on what can be delivered with the right investment. The aim is to strengthen 

collective reach into and across Government by speaking with one voice and maximising 

the impact of our respective contacts with different parts of Government. 

 

22. In addition to the LGA and Sports and Recreation Alliance, membership includes: Active 

Partnerships; Ukactive; Sport England; Youth Sport Trust; Sport Development Coalition; 

and CIMSPA.  

 

23. The group next meets on 11 June and will explore in detail the categories within the draft 

Compact. Once the Compact nears agreement, we will share the draft with lead 

members or the Board, depending on timing, for clearance. 

Implications for Wales 

24. The National Leisure Recovery Fund is an England-only fund, as is the Moving 

Communities Platform. The principles of the insourcing document and the future of public 

leisure research will also be relevant to Welsh authorities and will be shared with them.  

Implications for inclusion, diversity and equality 

 

25. The Future of Public leisure consultation work included specific questions about 

inequality, diversity and improving accessibility of services.  

 

26. The Moving Communities platform collects demographic data about use, providing 

significantly greater insight into who is using leisure centres.  

Financial Implications 

 

27. Future of public leisure - The research has been funded from the CTS policy budget 

through APSE as the lead partner. The work is on track and within budget. 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ  www.local.gov.uk  Telephone 020 7664 3000  Email info@local.gov.uk  Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145 Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

28. Emergency insourcing guide – This was funded by the CTS policy budget. The 

consultants were appointed after an open competition, and are on track to deliver the 

guide on time and to budget.  

Next steps 

 

29. The Future of public leisure report is currently being drafted and is due for completion in 

June, and a parliamentary launch event is being developed for mid-July.  

 

30. The emergency insourcing guide will be published w/c 7 June.  

Page 33

Agenda Item 5

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk




 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

 

Mass events and parkrun 

 

Purpose of report 

For information. 

Summary 

This paper provides feedback from members about the restart of events with large numbers 

of visitors, including parkrun.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Ian Leete 

Position:   Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   0207 664 3143  

Email:    ian.leete@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Recommendation/s 

For discussion. Members are invited to provide views on the recommendations in 

paragraph 22. 

Action/s 

Officers will continue to support parkrun and other event organisers to engage 

constructively with councils, and support councils by sharing the latest information and 

guidance to enable large events to take place safely in a Covid-secure fashion. 

 

 

Page 35

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Mass events and parkrun 

Background 

1. Large scale events have been postponed during the pandemic and have raised concerns 

about the risk they pose to transmission. However, the increased roll out of vaccines and 

a better understand of transmission methods has enabled new approaches to be 

developed, and Government announced a pilot research programme to help them return.  

 

2. Since April, the government’s Events Research Programme (ERP) (Paras 132-4) has 

analysed the Covid risk of various large-scale indoor and outdoor events, including the 

Brit Awards (4,000 indoor attendees), the FA Cup Final (21,000 seated outdoor 

spectators) and a Liverpool club night (3,000 people dancing inside). 

 

3. Several councils have been involved in the organisation of these events, most notably 

Liverpool City Council and the London Borough of Brent. The LGA has not been directly 

involved but has sought engagement with DCMS. 

 

4. International research is also taking place. A randomised controlled trial held in 

Barcelona, Spain, to assess the impact of comprehensive COVID-19 safety measures at 

a live indoor concert has reported no cases of virus transmission. The trial, held in 

December last year with 1,000 people, has raised hopes that indoor music events can 

take place without increasing the risk of spreading the virus. Attendees had to take 

same-day lateral flow tests before entry and wear a mask but there was no requirement 

for social distancing.  

 

5. Parkrun UK is an organisation that supports free weekly five and two kilometre runs 

across the country, many of which take place in council parks or open spaces. By 

convention, landowners do not charge parkrun organisers for use of their space. 

Parkruns are very popular community events, with more than three million people 

registered, and 300,000 people taking part on a typical weekend, and play an important 

role in supporting physical and mental wellbeing.  

 

6. The LGA and parkrun have been in communication throughout the duration of the 

pandemic, either directly or through Sport England’s event group. The LGA’s approach 

has been to provide advice and support to parkrun on how to demonstrate their events 

are following the latest guidance on safe operation, including what information to 

communicate with councils.  

 

7. The LGA has also been providing advice and support to councils, primarily through the 

daily or bi-weekly bulletins to senior leaders. However, supplementary engagement has 

also taken place through a variety of channels, including the MHCLG-convened beaches 

Page 36

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/963491/COVID-19_Response_-_Spring_2021.pdf
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/laninf/article/PIIS1473-3099(21)00268-1/fulltext
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/laninf/article/PIIS1473-3099(21)00268-1/fulltext
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/laninf/article/PIIS1473-3099(21)00268-1/fulltext


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

and events group, and engagement with officials in MHCLG and DCMS on specific 

pieces of guidance, although this has been less consistent.  

 

8. The popularity of parkrun means its return has been a high-profile issue and there has 

been ongoing interest from Ministers. parkrun planned to return in England on 5 June. In 

mid-May, media coverage and parliamentary questions emerged alleging that councils 

have been refusing applications for parkrun to resume, or requiring specific measures be 

put in place. This attracted significant media coverage. Proactive work by the LGA’s 

media meant that the LGA’s lines were often included. 

Issues 

 

9. This section sets out some of the issues raised with the LGA, both by councils and by 

events organisers. A particular focus is given on parkrun, as one of the earliest mass 

events to return across the country, with one or more events taking place in virtually 

every council area.  

 

10. Following discussions with Sport England’s events group and the Events Industry Forum, 

the LGA is in the process of establishing a webinar for councils on the Mass Event Pilots, 

and supporting guidance to Safety Advisory Groups. 

 

11. Communication between the LGA and parkrun has been open and constructive up to 

and including the restart of Junior parkruns in late March. At the time of writing, more 

than 372 parkrun events have now been approved to return, with only 21 refusals mainly 

from private landowners (3 from councils). However, 194 parkrun events have yet to be 

approved. 

 

12. There has not been time for a full assessment of claims in the media and by MPs, but 

feedback from council contacts, including the Chair of the Local Authority Events 

Organisers Group (LAEOG) has provided the information in paragraphs 13 and 14. 

 

13. Mass events 

13.1. There is currently no information available on learning from the DCMS Mass 

Events Pilots, which councils could then apply to their assessment of applications 

for large events 

13.2. Councils report that engagement and guidance from DCMS on events has been 

patchy, limited and on occasion conflicting. Similar feedback has been shared by 

other councils groups.  

13.3. Parliament did not introduce a waiver or relaxation for these events in the way that 

they did for erection of marquees and some other activities, meaning that standard 

approval processes must be followed. 

13.4. Councils are experiencing significant increases in workload due to events 

organisers waiting until the next step of the roadmap was confirmed by submitting 

Page 37

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.bbc.co.uk/sport/athletics/57179366


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

applications. This has led to a significant temporary spike in complex events that 

must be checked for Covid-secure arrangements. 

 

14. Parkrun 

14.1. All responding councils were supportive of parkrun and seeking to help it resume 

– for example all Surrey councils have given approval 

14.2. Applications from parkrun were received by local authorities between 3 and 11 

working days before media coverage of the issue began 

14.3. Other major landowners such as the National Trust have also indicated that their 

proposed restart date was too soon. 

14.4. Parkrun are applying a national risk assessment framework that does not factor in 

local context 

14.5. The Minister for Sport had provided a letter to parkrun endorsing the view that 

parkrun’s national framework would be sufficient to permit events, which, while 

supportive of parkrun, has been viewed as misleading given that local authorities 

are responsible for approving events applications 

 

15. From conversations with councils and stakeholders, it is clear that there is both a lack of 

clear, comprehensive guidance on running events, and a varying appetite for risk among 

councils.  

 

16. In late March, the LGA, Public Health England, Sport England, and Association of 

Directors of Public Health convened in advance of the restart of organised sport events 

to discuss how to manage risk. A joint statement was agreed and published, advising 

organisers of the need to engage with councils as early as possible before the event. 

 

17. In April, Ian Leete, LGA Senior Adviser for Culture, Tourism, and Sport, and Rupert 

Suckling, Director for Public Health at Doncaster Council, met with Sport England’s event 

group to discuss barriers to resumption of event and ways to streamline the process. It 

was agreed that Sport England would work on guidance for Safety Advisory Groups, and 

the LGA provided contact details for the network. ADPH agreed to provide information to 

Directors of Public Health to support proportionate risk management; and the LGA 

agreed to share best practice with councils. All these actions are in progress. 

 

18. More recently, the LGA has presented at the Events Industry Forum and supported 

clarification of guidance for issues raised by the Forum members. These clarifications 

have been shared through LGA bulletins. The LGA has also met with the Local Authority 

Events Organisers Group and is communicating information for regulatory officers on 

events.  

 

19. On 25 May, the LGA met with parkrun’s Chief Operating Officer and supported the 

redesign of communications material being sent to councils. Additional information on 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.sportengland.org/news/joint-statement-nations-safe-return-play


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

the restart has also been shared through LGA bulletins, with details for councils to 

contact the LGA or parkrun directly. 

 

20. The LGA is also running a webinar to share learning from the Mass Events Pilots on 4 

June and help councils understand what safeguards are appropriate, and what science 

has shown to be unnecessary – 658 delegates are currently registered. Parkrun’s Chief 

Operating Officer will present at this. However, DCMS have refused an invitation to 

speak, claiming it is too soon to share findings. They have also turned down invitations to 

smaller events, where they were asked to outline the context and objectives for the 

pilots.  

 

21. This lack of communication from DCMS is significantly hampering the ability of councils 

to work with events organisers to ensure a safe operation. Many events are planned for 

July and August and safety measures must be put in place now. Doing so without the 

learning from the Mass Events Pilots risks the events taking place either without 

necessary safety measures, or with overly restrictive and burdensome safety measures, 

or being cancelled completely. This poses a significant risk to the reputation and survival 

of the industry.  

 

22. We propose that lead members raise this challenge and lack of communication with 

Secretary of State for DCMS at the meeting on 22 June. We also suggest that we 

endorse the idea of a Government-backed insurance scheme for events, similar to that 

offered to homeowners following flooding, to enable the events industry to proceed with 

some confidence. 

Implications for Wales 

23. Wales is working to a different roadmap and the WLGA is leading on the return of events 

in Wales, in partnership with CLOW. 

Implications for inclusion, diversity and equality 

24. The return of events, particularly free events like parkrun, offers an opportunity for those 

on lower incomes who have struggled to access digital forms of entertainment or activity; 

we also know that many people report that mental health issues have become more 

challenging during enforced isolation of the pandemic and events may help them 

improve wellbeing. 

 

25.  However, there are also indications that some of the requirements for the layout of 

events are impacting on those with limited mobility; and mask requirements are affecting 

those experiencing hearing loss.  

 

26. There is also the potential for increased conflict between users of public spaces, which 

continue to show higher general use than in previous years. Large events and crowds 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp?pageID=417092&eventID=1220
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/frontend/reg/thome.csp?pageID=417092&eventID=1220


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

can be intimidating for some, particularly as they adapt to a return to social 

environments. 

 

27. As yet, there is very limited research, guidance or advice on this. We will share findings 

and recommendations on approaches as and when they become available.  

Financial Implications 

28. None. 

Next steps 

29. Officers will continue to engage closely with the Institute of Licensing, Local Authority 

Events Organisers Group, Events Industry Forum, parkrun and Sport England events 

group. 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

Annex A 

Engagement with Parkrun 

 

1. September 2020 -  Parkrun looked to resume its activities following a loosening of 

restrictions during the Summer period. Ian Leete met with the Chief Operating Officer for 

Parkrun, discussed the proposals and provided commentary and advice on the draft 

communications being prepared to send to councils.  

 

2. Directors of Public Health were canvassed and supportive of the health benefits of 

Parkrun, but concerned about the management of start and finish lines where people 

congregate. This was fed back to Parkrun, who emphasised this part of their guidance in 

communications.  

 

3. The proposed restart was communicated to councils in 3 of Mark Lloyd’s bulletins, before 

it was decided to postpone the restart due to a spike in infections.  

 

4. Early March 2021 – Parkrun contacted Ian Leete to discuss the resumption of Junior 

Parkrun. Ian provided commentary and advice on the proposed note being sent to 

councils. Parkrun’s restart blogs were highlighted in two of Mark Lloyd’s bulletins 

alongside the contact details for Parkrun’s Chief Operating Officer for councils to raise 

any concerns.  

 

5. Most applications for Junior Parkrun’s were approved, but Parkrun shared details of the 

refusals with the LGA. The LGA provided insight from local areas about the refusals, 

including significantly higher infections rates than average, unavailability for parking due 

to test centres etc and Parkrun acknowledged these were exceptional situations. They 

also indicated that other landowners such as the National Trust had indicated they would 

not be able to permit Parkruns until a later date.  

 

6. Late March 2021 – The LGA, Public Health England, Sport England, and Association of 

Directors of Public Health convened in advance of the restart of organised sport events 

to discuss how to manage risk. A joint statement was agreed and published, advising 

organisers of the need to engage with councils as early as possible before the event.  

 

7. Early April 2021 – Ian Leete and Rupert Suckling, Director for Public Health at 

Doncaster Council, met with Sport England’s event group to discuss barriers to 

resumption of event and ways to streamline the process.  

 

8. It was agreed that Sport England would work on guidance for Safety Advisory Groups, 

and the LGA provided contact details for the network. ADPH agreed to provide 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.sportengland.org/news/joint-statement-nations-safe-return-play


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 

information to Directors of Public Health to support proportionate risk management; and 

the LGA agreed to share best practice with councils. All these actions are in progress.  

 

9. May 2021 – Ian Leete has presented at the Events Industry Forum and supported 

clarification of guidance for issues raised by the Forum members. These clarifications 

have been shared through LGA bulletins. Ellie Greenwood, Senior Adviser for 

Regulation, has met with the Local Authority Events Organisers Group and is 

communicating information for regulatory officers on events.  

 

10. Ian Leete has met with Parkrun’s Chief Operating Officer and supported the redesign of 

communications material being sent to councils. Additional information on the restart has 

also been shared through LGA bulletins, with details for councils to contact the LGA or 

Parkrun directly. 

 

11. 4 June 2021 – A webinar on learning from the Mass Events Pilots is planned. Free 

places have been offered to Sport England’s Return to Play team and the Chair of the 

Events Industry Forum. Parkrun’s Chief Operating Officer will present at the event. 

 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://lgaevents.local.gov.uk/lga/1220/home


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

End of year report and Summer workplan 

 

Purpose of report 

For information. 

Summary 

This report sets out the key achievements of the CTS Board in 2020-21. The report outlines 

the significant areas of lobbying and communications work undertaken in 2020 to support 

the sector’s response to COVID.  

It also sets out a short workplan for the Summer period, before the Board reconvenes in 

September 2021. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact officer:  Ian Leete 

Position:          Senior Adviser 

Phone no:   0207 664 3143 

Email:    ian.leete@local.gov.uk 

 

  

 

Recommendations 

1. Members note the programme of lobbying and communications activity delivered 

during 2020-21. 

2. Members comment on the proposed Summer activities. 

 

Action 

1. This report will be placed on record.  

2. Officers will adapt the Summer workplan in line with members’ comments. 

 

Page 43

Agenda Item 7

mailto:ian.leete@local.gov.uk


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

 

Background 

 

1. To support the needs of our membership we promote the role of local government in 

culture, tourism and sport as this helps to build support for our policy agenda. This is 

delivered through a comprehensive communication offer that includes public affairs, 

media, marketing and digital engagement.  

 

2. 2020-21 was a challenging year for the LGA’s work. The predominant focus was around 

delivering on the funding and policy asks councils were making in order for them to be 

able to respond effectively to the pandemic. The CTS board’s lobbying work focussed 

around a number of key areas: 

2.1 Securing funding for leisure services; 

2.2 Providing access to libraries during lockdown, and safe operation of CTS-services at 

appropriate moments in the year; 

2.3 Facilitating safe opening and operation of parks, beaches and events; 

2.4 Seeking financial support for culture and tourism services impacted by closures due 

to COVID; 

2.5 Communicating the longer-term role of culture, tourism and sport in the delivery of 

economic recovery; and 

2.6 Promoting best practice of councils across the sector. 

 

3. The major achievement for the Board during 2020-21 was the securing of £100 million of 

emergency funding for leisure centres, as well as influencing the bidding process and 

deadlines to enable councils time to put together their funding proposals.  

 

4. However, over the year the Board also secured an additional £2000 for each library 

service to enhance their e-book offer, which saw increased demand of around 600% 

during lockdown periods. Planned VAT exemptions were also brought forward by 

Treasury following the LGA’s lobbying on the matter.   

 

5. In addition, the Board took action to ensure that councils were able to bid for the £1.75 

billion Cultural Recovery Fund, after last minute changes to the terms and conditions 

would have excluded councils from accepting the grants. Precise figures are not yet 

available, but at least 40 councils secured funding through this and related funds as a 

result of this work.  

Publications 
 
6. During 2020-21, the Board continued its planned work of best practice publications to 

support councils in delivering their services. This included work on supporting local 
creative economies. However, the Board also supported a number of rapid response 
publications to help councils respond to the needs of Covid-19, and to highlight the work 
of council culture, tourism and sport services in this area. This included a guidance note 
on supporting leisure providers; research and case studies on the financial impact of 

Page 44

Agenda Item 7

https://local.gov.uk/creative-places-supporting-your-local-creative-economy
https://local.gov.uk/creative-places-supporting-your-local-creative-economy
https://local.gov.uk/options-councils-supporting-leisure-providers-through-covid-19
https://www.cfpuk.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/Managing-Public-Parks-During-COVID-19-FINAL.pdf


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

Covid-19 on parks; and Leisure under lockdown. Six publications were produced and 
launched during this period, collectively receiving over 25 000 views.  

 
Parliamentary briefings and committees 
 
7. The Board continued its parliamentary engagement throughout the year, providing 

briefings ahead of debates, working with key parliamentarians to ask questions in both 
Houses, and responding to select committee inquiries. Foremost among these was the 
response to the DCMS Select Committee on the impact of Covid-19 on DCMS Sectors, 
which included the importance of funding council leisure services as a priority 
recommendation.  
 

8. Fourteen parliamentary briefings were provided during this period, along with two select 
committee responses, and Parliamentarians quoted from them during the debates. In 
addition, Cllr Vernon-Jackson gave evidence to the  House of Lords Committee on the 
National Plan for Sport and Recreation. Seven parliamentary questions were asked 
covering: libraries, support for leisure centres, parks and green spaces and their role in 
tackling obesity, and membership of the taskforce on Recreation and Leisure. 

 

Engagement with DCMS 

9. Engagement with the DCMS Secretary of State and Ministers has been a priority for the 

Board during the past year. Communication initially took the form of letters, but more 

recently direct engagement through local connections has proven more effective. The 

Minister for Sport attended the Board on 24th March, while the Commissioner for Cultural 

Recovery met lead members on 4 March and attended the Board on 17 March. A phone 

call between lead members and the Secretary of State is scheduled for 22 June.  

 

10. Ministers also established and chaired sector specific working groups to support the 

operational response and recovery to Covid-19. The LGA secured regular places on the 

working groups for Museums, Libraries, and Sport. A briefing on tourism and the visitor 

economy was also provided for the MHCLG-chaired Ministerial Working Group on 

Economic Recovery.   

Media:   

11. In 2020-21 we ran 29 CTS media stories on a broad range of issues including funding for 

leisure providers, library and park usage in lockdown, museums, and music venues. In 

addition to this we have also responded to individual media queries and have provided 

lines and briefings as required. Our stories have achieved close to 10,000 page views on 

the corporate website and have been picked up by a range of media outlets covering 

television, online and radio, with the most popular stories being picked up by over 10 

different outlets, for example: 

11.1. Our press release, highlighting how libraries across the country have seen an 

increase in newly registered users of more than 600 per cent since lockdown 

measures were introduced, featured on ITV Online, Independent Online, Mail 

Page 45

Agenda Item 7

https://www.cfpuk.co.uk/wp-content/uploads/Managing-Public-Parks-During-COVID-19-FINAL.pdf
https://local.gov.uk/lga-councils-one-top-investors-culture-sport-and-leisure
https://committees.parliament.uk/publications/2022/documents/19516/default/
https://committees.parliament.uk/committee/482/national-plan-for-sport-and-recreation-committee/
https://committees.parliament.uk/committee/482/national-plan-for-sport-and-recreation-committee/
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-600-percent-boom-online-library-memberships-some-areas-coronavirus-lockdown
https://www.itv.com/news/2020-04-04/libraries-see-new-online-memberships-soar-amid-lockdown/


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

Online, Sky News Radio, LBC Radio, the Telegraph, Mirror, i paper, Sun and 

the Sunday Times. 

11.2. Our press release which called for the Government to ensure leisure trusts have 

access to key funding to safeguard services featured on Sky Sports News, Sky 

Sports News channel and the Sun. 

 

12. The CTS team has produced or secured 18 pieces of coverage in First magazine, 

covering the full range of the CTS portfolio, including thinkpieces from the Chair of the 

Board.  

Events:  

13. We have been able to deliver 12 events from April 2020 onwards which have had over 

2000 attendees. This has included events covering sports, creative places and the future 

of public leisure, as well as the annual Culture, Tourism and Sport Conference which 

attracted record numbers. Further events are planned on the Mass Event pilots, which 

has 658 delegates registered, and an event on the new Sport England strategy and 

implementation plan.  

 

14. This does not include the events delivered as part of the ACE or Sport England 

improvement contracts, or the 4 subject specific workshops run directly by the CTS 

team. Delivering these contracts have involved a further 36 workshops and events, as 

well as three recovery and renewal panels and two peer challenges. Both contracts are 

being renegotiated for 2021-22. It is a sign of the strength of relationship with Arts 

Council England and Sport England and the value of this work that funding was made 

available to continue this work during the pandemic year, when most other funding 

streams were redirected to emergency response funds. 

Summer workplan 

15. The CTS teams’ work over the Summer will focus on three areas: 

15.1. Supporting reopening and the recovery – the majority of facilities have now 

reopened, but issues are emerging with interpreting guidance on the safe running of 

events, and the financial outlook for some facilities and community partners remains 

challenging. This will include the publication of our ‘emergency insourcing for leisure 

services’ publication, and supportive events and media work. 

15.2. Making the case for financial investment – the leisure sector remains financially 

vulnerable, with particular risks in areas of deprivation, so the team will continue to 

make the case for a further round of the National Leisure Recovery Fund, drawing 

on data collected through the Moving Communities Platform, and working with 

partners to build a collective and consistent ask of Government. We will also 

develop plans across the CTS portfolio in preparation for the Comprehensive 

Spending Review expected in the Autumn, and explore opportunities to strengthen 

cultural and heritage focused bids to the Levelling Up Fund and UK Shared 

Prosperity Fund. 

Page 46

Agenda Item 7

https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-lga-warns-leisure-providers-falling-between-support-packages
https://www.skysports.com/more-sports/athletics/news/29876/11984441/leisure-centres-facing-crisis-point-without-government-funding-say


 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

 

15.3. Strengthen the Board’s engagement with DCMS and key stakeholders – the 

pandemic has shown the importance of having strong, effective networks. We have 

begun regular meetings with the DCMS place team and are setting up similar 

engagements with the DCMS sports team – these relationships will need an 

investment of time before they reach the strength of relationship experienced with 

the DCMS libraries and museums teams. New sector partnerships have also been 

established, primarily in the sport and physical activity sector, and we will continue to 

work with them to ensure that they have an understanding of the local government 

role, and that it is reflected in the collective offers and asks they are developing for 

Government.  

 

Implications for Wales 

16.  Culture, tourism and sport services are devolved to the Welsh Assembly, although there 

remains significant cross-over in practice and need. 

Financial Implications 

17. The Board’s work has been completed in line with its policy budget.  

Next Steps 

18. Following on from member feedback officers will refine the programme for the Summer.  

 

Page 47

Agenda Item 7





 

 

Culture, Tourism & Sport Board 

02 June 2021 

 

 

 

18 Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ    www.local.gov.uk    Telephone 020 7664 3000    Email info@local.gov.uk    Chief Executive: Mark Lloyd  

Local Government Association company number 11177145  Improvement and Development Agency for Local Government company number 03675577 

 
 

 

APPENDIX A 

 

Further background 

Set out below are the links to our media stories and responses for members reference. 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-sport-england-children-and-young-people-
survey 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-covid-19-has-devastated-councils-park-services 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-councils-one-top-investors-culture-sport-and-leisure 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-further-details-around-ps1-billion-covid-19-
funding-councils 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-physical-activity-sector-letter-prime-minister 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/creative-industries-can-play-key-role-covid-19-recovery 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-culture-funding-announcement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-dcms-report-impact-covid-19-culture-and-sport 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-park-litter-campaign-keep-britain-tidy 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/leisure-providers-rescue-package-vital-fight-against-obesity 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-gyms-and-leisure-centres-reopen-lga-statement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-governments-arts-funding-announcement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-tourism-funding-announcement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-museums-and-galleries-reopening 
announcement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-new-cultural-taskforce-risks-losing-local-voice-renewal 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-arts-council-england-libraries-funding 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-lga-responds-minister-park-closures-guidance 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-local-government-and-arts-council-england-
launch-collaboration-support-culturalhttps://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-heritage-
lottery-fund-announcement 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-sport-england-funding-support-package 

 https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-arts-council-england-funding 
 

Page 49

Agenda Item 7

http://www.local.gov.uk/
mailto:info@local.gov.uk
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-sport-england-children-and-young-people-survey
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-sport-england-children-and-young-people-survey
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-covid-19-has-devastated-councils-park-services
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-councils-one-top-investors-culture-sport-and-leisure
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-further-details-around-ps1-billion-covid-19-funding-councils
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-further-details-around-ps1-billion-covid-19-funding-councils
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-physical-activity-sector-letter-prime-minister
https://www.local.gov.uk/creative-industries-can-play-key-role-covid-19-recovery
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-culture-funding-announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-dcms-report-impact-covid-19-culture-and-sport
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-park-litter-campaign-keep-britain-tidy
https://www.local.gov.uk/leisure-providers-rescue-package-vital-fight-against-obesity
https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-gyms-and-leisure-centres-reopen-lga-statement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-governments-arts-funding-announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-tourism-funding-announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-museums-and-galleries-reopening%20announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-museums-and-galleries-reopening%20announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-new-cultural-taskforce-risks-losing-local-voice-renewal
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-arts-council-england-libraries-funding
https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-lga-responds-minister-park-closures-guidance
https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-local-government-and-arts-council-england-launch-collaboration-support-cultural
https://www.local.gov.uk/coronavirus-local-government-and-arts-council-england-launch-collaboration-support-cultural
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-heritage-lottery-fund-announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-heritage-lottery-fund-announcement
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-sport-england-funding-support-package
https://www.local.gov.uk/lga-responds-arts-council-england-funding




  

Culture, Tourism and Sport Board  

2 June 2021 

 

 
 
Outside Bodies 
 

 

Purpose of report 

 

For discussion. 

 

Summary 

 

This report has two parts: 
 

A - CTS Outside Bodies Background and Appointments Process 2020/21 
B - Report back on member meetings since 20 January 2021. 

 

 

Recommendations 

 
That the members of the Culture, Tourism and Sport Board:  
 

1. Agree the list of outside bodies.  
2. Agree appointments to outside bodies.  

 

Action 

 

Officers to take forward actions. 

 

 

 

 

 
Contact officer:     Emma West 

Position: 

Tel: 

Member Services Officer 

07956 859543 

E-mail: Emma.west@local.gov.uk   

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8

mailto:Emma.west@local.gov.uk


  

Culture, Tourism and Sport Board  

2 June 2021 

 

 
Outside Bodies 
 
A - CTS Outside Bodies Background and Appointments Process 2020/21 

 

Background 

1 The Board terms of references says the Culture, Tourism and Sport Board may: 
 

1.1 Appoint members to relevant outside bodies in accordance with the Political 
Conventions. 

 

1.2 Appoint member champions and spokespersons from the Board to lead on key 
issues. 

 
Appointments process 

2 Members may put themselves forward to represent the LGA on specific subjects or on 
outside bodies. Members wishing to do this should approach their lead member, who 
will be responsible for putting their name forward to the Board.  

3 Lead members will discuss nominations at their first meeting. If there is more than one 
nomination for the role, a vote of the Lead members will be held, with a casting vote by 
the Board Chair if necessary.  

4 Outside bodies and champion roles must, as far as possible, be split equally between 
parties, in accordance with the political conventions of the LGA. Where there are odd 
numbers of roles, or a new role is added during the Board year, first chance to fill the 
role will be offered to those parties that hold the fewest roles – although they may chose 
not to nominate to that role.  

5 The Board may also choose to appoint someone to a role due to their particular 
expertise, irrespective of party; appointments made for this reason should be agreed by 
all lead members.  

6 The LGA does not provide expenses for costs associated with Champion or outside 
body roles. Some outside bodies may cover these costs directly and members may 
recover their costs from these.  

 
 
B – Report back on member meetings since the start of 2021 
 

 The Tourism Alliance (Cllr Vernon-Jackson) - The Tourism Alliance continues to be 
very busy. The link between the LGA and the Tourism Alliance has allowed businesses 
in the sector to highlight issues where there are problems with different regulations and 
how they are implementation in different places. We have been able to use the LGA 
bulletin to highlight these issues. (This update was provided on 19 May 2021) 
 

 Coastal Special Interest Group (Cllr David Jeffels) - A meeting would take place w/c 
22 March of the Coastal Special Interest Group where Cllr Jeffels would provide a report 
on schemes on the North Yorkshire coast. He added that he would be the champion for 

Page 52

Agenda Item 8



  

Culture, Tourism and Sport Board  

2 June 2021 

 
suicides on the coast. (This update was provided on 17 Mar 2021) 

 

 London Marathon Charitable Trust (Cllr Richard Henry) - There has been a review of 
the structure and boards of LMCT and the delivery company London Marathon Events 
with a new structure now implemented. The London Marathon is now scheduled to take 
place on Sunday 3rd October with huge interest both nationally and internationally. We 
are constantly reviewing the Covid situation and hope to deliver other events as and 
when we can. (Update provided on 8 March 2021) 
 

Page 53

Agenda Item 8




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the last meetings (includes extraordinary meeting)
	Item 2 - Final mins from 24 Mar (confidential)

	4 Arts Council England's (ACE) Delivery Plans
	5 Update on work to support sport and physical activity services
	6 Parkrun and Mass Events
	Item 6 - ANNEX A 2021 05 24 Parkrun and Mass Events

	7 End of year report and summer workplan
	Item 7 - APPENDIX A 2021 05 27 End of year report and Summer workplan

	8 Outside Bodies

